
 

(Page 1 of 4) 
 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, October 22, 2013  

 

Present: Chairman Krieger, Selectman Ives and Selectman Bowles. 

Also present was Fire Chief Rick Wright and Steve Bennett from the Transfer Station. 

 

Chairman Krieger called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.  

 

 

I. Selectman Ives moved to approve the Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes of Tuesday, October 

15, 2013 as written. Seconded by Selectman Bowles. All in favor. Motion carried. 

 

II. The Board met with Steve Bennett from the Transfer Station. 

a. Mr. Bennett was in to discuss the co-op. Mr. Bennett explained that the town will not 

be held accountable to pay more or less than the GMQ (Guaranteed Minimum 

Quantity), the GMQ will just be an estimate for Wheelabrator and the town will be 

charged only for the tonnage they deliver. Mr. Bennett explained that the amount we 

are paying now is $66.80 per ton. He explained that he has a meeting Thursday night 

and unless something has changed he expects the per ton charge to be $64.00 for 2014. 

Mr. Bennett said that the co-op has estimated that Loudon will deliver 3072 tons next 

year. He said that he agrees with that number. The Board agreed with Mr. Bennett.  

b. Chairman Krieger asked how everything is going at the Transfer Station. Mr. Bennett 

said well. Selectman Ives asked if there are any projects at the Station that they should 

be looking at. Mr. Bennett explained that there is a problem with theft; outside people 

are coming in and taking things like batteries and air conditioners. Mr. Bennett said he 

spoke to Chief Fiske about a security camera out by the gate to tell who is coming in 

and out. He said that Canterbury has the same problem; they had batteries disappear, 

they think it might be the same person. Canterbury PD put in a camera and they got the 

person. Mr. Bennett said he and Selectman Bowles checked out Canterbury’s camera 

and feel that they can get a camera that will work for $150-200.  

c. Mr. Bennett said they are cleaning up the outside getting ready for winter.  

 

 

III. The Board met with Fire Chief Rick Wright. 

a. Chief Wright submitted a Forest Fire Warden appointment paper for the Board to sign. 

Chief Wright will be replacing Dick Wright as Forest Fire Warden. Chairman Krieger 

asked Chief Wright to let Dick Wright know how much they appreciate him doing it for 

so long.  

b. Chief Wright submitted a copy of a letter that he sent to the State regarding Red Pine 

trees that are dying along 106 that could become a problem. 

c. Chief Wright explained that he has spoken to the other department heads about a 

CPR/AED class for town employees. He said it appears that Wednesday is the best day 

so they scheduled the class for November 20 and December 4 from 9:00 am – noon; 

employees can pick the day they want to attend. Chairman Krieger thanked Chief 

Wright for arranging for the classes and for covering the cost of books from his budget. 

Chairman Krieger said they will look at the budget for future classes. Chief Wright said 



 

(Page 2 of 4) 
 

that at some point they should look at adding AED units to other town buildings. 

Chairman Krieger said that the Police Department has one; he isn’t sure about the 

library. Chairman Krieger asked Chief Wright to do a check and find out what the town 

needs. 

d. Chief Wright said that he spoke to Greg Fillmore who is still willing to help with the 

underground pipe and hydrant extension on International Drive. He explained that the 

materials were bought in 2010 but were never installed. Selectman Ives asked for 

clarification on where the extension is going. Chief Wright explained that there is a dry 

hydrant at the fire pond about 400’ beyond the gate into the road, the idea is to put in a 

real hydrant in the area of that and run pipe to the first hydrant by the gate. 

e. Chief Wright explained that the weeds are growing in on the pond that supplies the dry 

hydrant on Bee Hole Road and needs to be dredged. He said he got a price from Mike 

Labonte and Russ Pearl to do that work. Chief Wright said he has an appointment to 

meet with the property owners on Friday to discuss it. Selectman Ives asked if DES 

needs to be contacted. Chief Wright said he talked to them and no permit is needed. 

f. Chief Wright said three new people have joined the Fire Department in the last month; 

all with certifications. He said he has three more in the process of joining; two of those 

are certified.  

g. Chief Wright said the harvest supper went very well, about 400 people attended. Chief 

Wright said they had a huge amount of volunteers both on Friday and Saturday to make 

it a great success.  

 

IV. The Board began their review of weekly correspondence.  

a. The Board reviewed an estimate they received from the recreation department 

regarding lighting in the Gazebo. Selectman Bowles said he looked at it and it 

definitely needs to be replaced however; he would like to wait until spring. Chairman 

Krieger asked what benefit there is to waiting until spring. Selectman Bowles said the 

gazebo doesn’t get used in the winter, and they wouldn’t have to worry about 

vandalism.  

b. The Board received an agenda for the Selectmen/School Board meeting October 30
 
at 

7:00 pm. 

c. Chairman Krieger thanked Magoon Trees for taking down a tree on Batchelder road 

that was a hindrance.  

d. The Board received a revised Letter of Intent from NHMS regarding activities during 

the 2013 Gift of Lights which is a 2 mile long light south starting November 15 – 

January 5, 2014 from 4:30 pm to 9:00 pm daily. Chairman Krieger stated that they will 

have activities such as the Arctic Animal Experience, Ice Skating, Marshmallow 

Roasting, Concessions, Vendors and Santa Land. 

e. The Board received Primex Workers’ Compensation renewal information. 

f. The Board received Primex Unemployment Compensation renewal information. 

g. The Board received a Capital Improvement Program application from the Planning 

Board which is due Nov. 15, 2013. 

h. The Board received ESMI’s September self-report. 

i. The Board received a copy of a scholarship refund check.  

j. The Board received notification that there will be Senator Ayotte Office Hours at the 

Loudon Town Office on Thursday October 31 from 2:30 pm to 3:30 pm. 



 

(Page 3 of 4) 
 

k. The Board received information from Tim Carter regarding “Granite State Future”. The 

Board will meet with him.  

l. The Board received information from a representative of Combined Insurance. The 

Board will make an appointment to meet with him. 

m. The Board received a scholarship thank you. 

n. The Board received miscellaneous correspondence. 

 

IV. Board received the following reminders: 

a. Thursday, October 24 at 7:00 pm is the Zoning Board meeting 

b. Wednesday, October 30 at 7:00 pm is the Selectmen/School Board meeting. 
 

V. The Board recognized Dennis and Deborah Jakubowski from Bumfagon Road.  

a. Mr. Jakubowski asked where the lighting at the track stands. Chairman Krieger said it 

is right where it has been; noting has changed since Bob Bahre owned the track, 

technically they can put lights in anytime, they just can’t use them for a night race. 

Selectman Ives said they would have to go to court to get that changed, he hasn’t heard 

anything about them doing that. Selectman Ives said it’s not something that they can 

just come to the Selectmen and get changed. Mr. Jakubowski asked what the 

Selectmen’s position would be on it. Selectman Ives said that right now he is in the wait 

and see mode; he has spoken to some who think it would shorten the weekend. Mr. 

Jakubowski said that the lights will be a big investment so as a business they will want 

to recoup that investment. If it was his business he wouldn’t run them once a year he 

would run them whenever he could; races, concerts etc. Selectman Ives said if they did 

win it in court there would have to be restrictions on how many days and how often 

they used them. Chairman Krieger said where he grew up there was night racing so 

personally he wouldn’t mind it but as a Selectman he has to do what the people want. 

He explained that the Board couldn’t authorize the night racing it would have to go 

through a system of people. Chairman Krieger said he spoke to Mr. Gappens and told 

him that if the track decides to do this it would be well publicized and they would have 

Selectmen meetings to make sure that as many people as possible know about it and 

have the opportunity to voice their concerns.  

b. Mr. Jakubowski suggested that fire permits be emailed to residents to save them from 

having to drive to the station to pick them up. The Board agreed it is a good idea and 

will mention it to the Fire Department.  

  

VI. The Board recognized Bob Raymond from Mudgett Hill Road. Mr. Raymond explained 

that since the road was paved he has had issues with rain runoff. He said that the highway 

department did cut a trench but it didn’t do any good. Mr. Raymond said that the rain used 

to follow the stonewall down to the culvert but since the paving raised the road it runs into 

his driveway instead. Chairman Krieger said that the Road Agent will contact Mr. 

Raymond this week, if he doesn’t hear from him by Thursday, call the office. Mr. 

Raymond showed the Board pictures of his driveway. Selectman Ives asked Mr. Raymond 

how he thinks the issue could be resolved. Mr. Raymond said that now he needs a culvert. 

Selectman Bowles said that he will take a look at it, talk to the Road Agent and come up 

with a solution.  
 



 

(Page 4 of 4) 
 

 

 

Selectman Bowles moved to adjourn at 6:52 P.M. Seconded by Selectman Ives. All in favor. 

Motion carried.  

 

 

LOUDON BOARD OF SELECTMEN  

 

_________________________________  

Robert P. Krieger, Chairman  

 

_________________________________  

Steven R. Ives, Selectman  

 

_________________________________  

Dustin J. Bowles, Selectman 

 


